
DEEPHAVEN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2016 

MINUTES 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER:  Mayor Paul Skrede called the meeting to order at 7:00 
p.m. 

 
PRESENT: Mayor Paul Skrede, Councilmembers Steve Erickson, Tony Jewett, Keith Kask 

and Darel Gustafson 
 
STAFF: Police Chief Cory Johnson and City Administrator Dana Young 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Council recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
  
Motion by Councilmember Kask to approve the Consent Agenda, consisting of the following 
items: 
 

A. Approve August 1, 2016 Council Minutes 
B. Approve July 2016 Treasurer’s Report 
 

Seconded by Councilmember Gustafson.  Motion carried 5-0.  
   
4. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
 
There were no Matters from the Floor this evening. 
 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
A. Authorize Pay Estimate No. 1 to Valley Paving 
 
Administrator Young presented Pay Estimate No. 1 from Valley Paving Inc. in the amount of 
$254,487.65 for the 2016 Street Improvement Project.  He stated that the majority of the bid 
quantities are on target with the exception of bituminous berms.  He stated that there was an 
additional 1,100 lineal feet of bituminous berms that had to be installed above the 300 lineal feet 
that were listed on the bid.  He stated that this will increase the overall project cost by 
approximately $8,000. 
 
Mayor Skrede stated that the pay estimate forms should include a separate line item for change 
orders.  He noted that we will be looking into revising our street improvement process by having 
the Public Works Foreman reviewing each upcoming street project to ensure that replacement or 
additional curbing is included in the bid specifications. 
 



Councilmember Gustafson questioned the engineer’s role in the development of street bid 
specifications and noted that this was not a small miscalculation in the amount of curbing 
needed. 
 
Mayor Skrede agreed and stated that we would give our City Engineer our recommendations 
when he comes to present the Final Payment request. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Gustafson to authorize Pay Estimate No. 1 to Valley Paving in the 
amount of $254,487.65 for the 2016 Street Improvement Project.  Seconded by Councilmember 
Erickson.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
B. Discuss Buoy Transition Process 
 
Mayor Skrede asked the Council if they had reviewed the staff memo on the Buoy Transition 
Process, which included the Boat Committee’s recommendations and comments from Marina 
Clerk Deborah Hicks.  He stated that due to the fact that the Lake Minnetonka Conservation 
District gave the City permission to moor watercraft including both powerboats and sailboats on 
buoys, the Council needs to develop policies pertaining to the new use of the buoys. 
 
Mayor Skrede stated that he had four objections to the recommendations of the Boat Committee 
on the Buoy Transition Process.  First, in regards to providing public notification of the new 
buoy waiting list, he stated that “Next Door Deephaven” should not be one of the primary 
vehicles for providing information to the residents.  He stated that the newsletter and the city 
website should be the primary methods used to provide this information.    
 
Mayor Skrede stated that his second objection was in regards to the recommendation that the 
City maintain the rule that a dock leaseholder may also have a buoy space if a buoy space is 
available.  He stated that we don’t need to have someone with both a dock and a buoy space  
 
Mayor Skrede stated that his third objection was in regards to the recommendation that ten year 
limits be established for powerboats on buoys and to allow lifetime tenure for sailboats.  He 
stated that there should be ten year limits for all new resources moving forward. 
 
Mayor Skrede stated that his final objection was in regards to the recommendation that the dock 
waiting list simply be moved over to the buoy waiting list. 
 
Councilmember Erickson stated that he agreed with the proposed amendments to the timelines 
suggested by Marina Clerk Deborah Hicks.  The Council unanimously agreed with Deborah 
Hick’s recommendations. 
 
Councilmember Jewett stated that he was curious about establishing a new waiting list 
determined by the seniority on the dock waiting list. 
 
Councilmember Erickson stated that if he had the choice, he would prefer one list using the dock 
waiting list.  He stated that he would fill the empty buoys with powerboats from the current dock 



waiting list.  He stated that he thought it would be easier to fill these buoys with those on the 
dock waiting list. 
 
Councilmember Kask stated his concern that this might generate a lot of phone calls to staff.  He 
stated that those on the dock waiting list should have the option of staying on the dock list which 
would give people the option of gravitating from the buoys to the dock. 
 
Councilmember Gustafson stated that he didn’t think this would be particularly stressful for staff 
and noted that each waiting list operates independently. 
 
Councilmember Erickson stated that this would not give precedence to those residents with 
sailboats.  He asked if there would be any interest in reserving St. Louis Bay for the exclusive 
use of sailboats.  The Council generally decided that this should not be the case. 
 
Mayor Skrede stated that he wouldn’t be in favor of reserving St. Louis Bay for sailboats as it 
would not maintain the current lifestyle of residents. 
 
Discussion was held on whether the City should provide transportation to the buoys. 
 
Councilmember Kask stated that this would be cumbersome and noted that residents may have 
some other way to get out to the buoys.  He suggested creating more canoe racks. 
 
Councilmember Gustafson added that residents could carry down light weight kayaks to access 
the buoys. 
 
The Council agreed that the City would not provide transportation to the buoys. 
 
Discussion was held on the pricing of the buoys.  The Council agreed to keep the pricing at the 
current rate of $450 for the boating season. 
 
Discussion was held on the creation of the new buoy list. 
 
Mayor Skrede stated that there are a couple of options.  One is a mass migration from the dock 
waiting list and the other is to have people submit applications by mail, which wouldn’t be 
accepted before a certain date. 
 
Administrator Young noted that there are three residents who were on the waiting list from the 
start of the year and approximately ten other residents who have signed up once they heard that 
the LMCD had opened up the buoys to powerboats. 
 
Councilmember Gustafson stated that every resident had a fair opportunity to know about the 
buoys. 
 
Mayor Skrede stated that he would prefer a specific start date since everyone who knew about it 
early on don’t know about the lease details. 
 



Councilmember Gustafson stated that they could simply turn it down if they don’t like the terms 
of the lease. 
 
Councilmember Kask stated that the official application should be in the newsletter but 
questioned whether everyone gets the newsletter.  He stated that is why you would need a 
specific date after the publication of the newsletter. 
 
Councilmember Jewett recommended posting the application on line. 
 
The Council decided that all applications to the new buoy waiting list should be sent by mail to 
be received by the City no earlier than October 15th.  The new buoy waiting list would be 
developed from these mailed applications. 
 
C. Other 
 
There was no other Unfinished Business this evening. 
 
6.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.  Adopt Ordinance No. 05-47, Chain Saw Operations 
 
Mayor Skrede stated that there has been an issue of excessive chain sawing in one part of town, 
although similar problems have also occurred in other parts of the city.  He stated that the 
ordinance was drafted using this one particular instance to establish the parameters of the 
ordinance. 
 
He stated that the ordinance proposed to eliminate the use of chain saws as maintenance 
equipment and he read the entire section of the ordinance pertaining to limiting the use of chain 
saws under certain conditions.  He stated that it is important to know that the Police Chief has 
been part of this process and that it was determined that the size of the permitted woodpile 
storage was sufficient for one year’s heating.  He added that this ordinance would eliminate the 
disposing of trees by transferring them from one property to another. 
 
Councilmember Gustafson inquired about that portion of the ordinance that gave the Police 
Chief the authority to permit a larger storage of wood than is permitted under the ordinance. 
 
Administrator Young stated that there may be extraordinary circumstances, such as significant 
storm damage resulting in the loss of numerous trees, that might result in the need to store a 
larger than permitted stockpile of wood. 
 
Mayor Skrede stated that he thought that this ordinance was long overdue and was happy with 
the proposed language.   
 
Councilmember Kask suggested the word “pruning” rather than “maintenance” and added that he 
would also love to see a prohibition on the use of leaf blowers after 6:00 p.m.  He stated that 



there was a need for the quiet enjoyment of your property and found that the noise from leaf 
blowers can be a real nuisance.   
 
Councilmember Jewett recommended a different measurement on the size of the permitted 
woodpile at four feet wide by four feet high by twenty four feet long.  He stated that this equals 
three cords of wood and actually measures less in area than the dimensions proposed in the 
ordinance. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Erickson to adopt Ordinance No. 05-47, Amending Public Nuisances 
by controlling the operation of chain saws as amended this evening and to waive the second 
reading.  Seconded by Councilmember Jewett.  Motion carried 5-0. 
  
B.  Other 
 
There was no other New Business this evening. 
 
7. REPORTS FROM STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
A. Public Works Committee 
 
Administrator Young presented a review of the Public Works Committee meeting held on 
August 2, 2016 on the following items: 
 

• Reviewed and denied a request for crosswalks at Vine Hill Road & Excelsior Blvd, 
Vine Hill Road & Rosedale Avenue, and Vine Hill Road and Cottagewood Road. 

• Discussed improvements made to a property at 5000 Highcrest Drive. 
• Discussed the proposed chain saw ordinance. 
• Discussed the Vine Hill Road street project, including the need to install additional 

berms on Vine Hill, Harper Road and the Vine Street cul-de-sac. 
• Discussed potential storm sewer improvements. 

 
Councilmember Jewett provided an update on recent Lake Minnetonka Communications 
Commission activities. 
    
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Kask to adjourn the Regular Council, seconded by Councilmember 
Erickson.  Motion carried 5-0.  The meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 
 
9. SPECIAL COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSESSION 
 
Further discussion was held on final revisions to the 2017 General Fund Budget. 
 
 
 
 



10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Gustafson to adjourn the Special Council Budget Work Session, 
seconded by Councilmember Kask.  Motion carried 5-0.  The meeting adjourned at 8:35         
p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Dana H. Young 
City Administrator 
 
 
 


